
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Standing Advisory Council on 
Religious Education (SACRE) 

Agenda 

 

 
  

 

Members of the Public are welcome to attend this Meeting. 
 

 
1.   Attendance at Meeting  

 
2.   Declarations of Interest  

 
3.   To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of SACRE held on 17 March 2025 (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
4.   Members discussion:  The ongoing role of SACRE on Darlington (Pages 7 - 14) 

 
5.   Supplementary Items(s) (if any) which in the opinion of the Chair of this Committee are 

of an urgent nature and can be discussed at this meeting  
 

6.   Questions  
 

7.   Date and Time of Remaining Meetings in this Municipal Year: –  
Monday 10 November 2025 – 16:15 

Monday 9 March 2026 – 16:15 
  

 
 

 

4.15 pm 

Monday, 7 July 2025 

Council Chamber, Town Hall, Darlington.  DL1 5QT 

Public Document Pack



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
 

Amy Wennington 

         Assistant Director Law and Governance 
 

 
 

 
 
Friday, 27 June 2025 
 
Town Hall, 
Darlington. 

 
 

Membership 
Jenny Uzzell, Group A Paganism 
Martin Stand, Group B Church of England 
Dr M Al-Dimashki, Group A Islamic Society 
Helen Ellis, Group A The Roman Catholic Church 
M Calderon, Group A The Religious Society of Friends 
Rev Thompson, Group A Darlington Baptist Church 
B Singh, Group A Sikhism 
Bess Robertson, Group A Darlington Hebrew Congregation (Judaism) 
Gen Chogma, Group A Buddhism 
Meg Thomson, Group A Darlington United Reformed Church 
Dr Kumari, Group A Hinduism 
Emma Walden, Group A Methodist Circuit 
Beth Miller, Group B Church of England 
Fiona Rankin, Group C The National Association of School Teacher/Union of Women Teachers 
(NASUWT) 
Dean Lythgoe, Group C The Association of School and College Leaders 
Lindsay Henderson, Group C National Education Union 
Stuart Rawle, Group C National Association of Head Teachers (NAHT)  
Councillor Curry, Group D Darlington Borough Council  
Councillor Lee, Group D Darlington Borough Council  
Councillor Toms, Group D Darlington Borough Council 
Councillor Wallis, Group D Darlington Borough Council  
Jaiyesimi, Group A - Methodist Church - SACRE 
Yates, Group A  - Roman Catholic Church - SACRE 
 
Co-opted Members: 
M Fryer, Co-opted Member of SACRE 
Jan Mole, Co-opted Member of SACRE 
 



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other queries on 
this agenda please contact Michael Conway, Mayoral and Democratic Officer, Operations 

Group, during normal office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 8.30 a.m. 
to 4.15 p.m. Fridays email: Michael.Conway@darlington.gov.uk or Tel 01325 406309 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (SACRE) 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, DARLINGTON DL1 5QT 
MONDAY, 17 MARCH 2025 

 
PRESENT – 

 
Councillor Curry (Group D Darlington Borough Council), Councillor Toms (Group D Darlington 
Borough Council) and Councillor Wallis (Group D Darlington Borough Council)  
 
Co-opted Members –   
 
Officers –   

 
APOLOGIES – Councillor Lee (Group D Darlington Borough Council) 

 
 

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no declarations of interest reported at the meeting. 
 

2 TO APPOINT A CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR FOR A THREE-YEAR TERM OF OFFICE 
 

 AGREED – That Jenny Uzell be appointed Chair of this SACRE for a three-year term. 
That Martin Stand be appointed the Vice-Chair of this SACRE for a three-year term. 

 
3 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF SACRE HELD ON 10 JULY 2023 

 
 Submitted – The Minutes (previously circulated) of the Meeting of this SACRE held on 10 July 

2023. 
 
IT WAS AGREED – That the Minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 
 

4 REVIEW OF HUMANISTS' MEMBER-STATUS / RATIFICATION OF NEW CATHOLIC MEMBER 
 

 IT WAS AGREED – That the Humanists membership is approved.  The the ratification of a 
new Roman Catholic Member for Group A is approved. 

 
5 ACADEMISATION OF THE MAINTAINED SCHOOLS IN DARLINGTON 

 
 The SEND & Inclusion Advisory Lead officer provided information to committee members 

that all maintained schools Darlington (apart from the Pupil Referral Unit) are now on a track 
to academisation. Two maintained nurseries are present however the national curriculum 

does not apply in the early years.   
 
The SEND & Inclusion Advisory Lead officer has been working closely with Rise Carr (PRU) this 
academic year on planning and delivering Religious Education for which SACRE will be 
updated once information becomes available.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

  

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Discussion was held regarding functions of SACRE in Darlington – members expressed that a 

useful way forward would be to engage religious representatives from schools alongside the 
desire to keep faith leaders educated as to the function of SACRE.  

 
A presentation on the function of Jigsaw publication house and its resource portal will be 

presented to SACRE at a later date. 
 
IT WAS AGREED – That the role of SACRE in Darlington is to be the main agenda item in the 
next meeting with the clerk to remind members via email prior to meetings to help boost 
attendance. 
 

6 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

 
 IT WAS AGREED – That the next meeting be held on Monday 7 July 2025 commencing at 

16:15 
 

Page 6



 
Constitution of the Darlington Borough Council 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education  

(With effect from 29th June, 2010) 

 

 

Introduction 

 

1.1 Section 390 of the Education Act 1996 requires every local authority to constitute a Standing 

Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE). This Constitution sets out the framework 
within which the SACRE may function. Its content reflects what is required by the 1996 Act. 
The Constitution also reflects the requirement for the SACRE to broadly represent the 

proportionate strength of the local religious groups. 
 

The Powers and Duties of the SACRE 

 

2.1 The broad role of the SACRE is to advise the local authority upon such matters connected 

with religious worship in community schools and the religious education to be given in 
accordance with an Agreed Syllabus for RE, as the local authority may refer to the SACRE or as 

the SACRE itself may think fit.  
 
2.2 The SACRE has a range of functions, some of them advisory and some of them executive.  

 
Advisory functions: 

 
2.3 To advise the local authority upon such matters connected with RE in community schools to 
be given in accordance with the Agreed Syllabus, as the local authority may refer to the SACRE 

or as the SACRE itself may think fit. Such matters include in particular methods of teaching, the 
choice of teaching materials and the provision of training for teachers.  

 
2.4 To advise the local authority upon such matters connected with collective worship in 
community schools, as the local authority may refer to the SACRE or as the SACRE itself may 

think fit. 
 

Executive functions: 
 
2.5 To consider and determine, in accordance with Section 394 of the Education Act 1996, 

applications from the Head Teachers of community schools, or foundation schools which are not 
defined as having a religious character, that the requirement for collective worship which is 

wholly or mainly of a broadly Christian character should not apply in the case of the school or a 
particular category of pupils within it. 
 

2.6 To consider whether a review of the existing Agreed Syllabus for RE should be undertaken. 
 

2.7 To publish an annual report on the work of the SACRE.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



The Composition of the SACRE 

 

3.1 The SACRE shall comprise of four representative committees as follows: 
 

Committee A: Other Religious Faiths. 

Such Christian denominations (other than the Church of England) and other religious faiths as, 
in the opinion of the local authority, reflect the principal religious traditions in the area, namely: 

the Assemblies of God, the Baptist Church, the Methodist Church, the Pentecostal Church, the 
Roman Catholic Church, the Salvation Army, the Society of Friends, the United Reformed 

Church, Buddism, Hinduism, Islam, the Jehovah’s Witnesses, Judaism and Sikhism (1 
representative for each church or religious group).  This list is not exhaustive and the SACRE 
may decide to include other representatives as the demographics of Darlington change or other 

groups come to the notice of SACRE. 
 

Committee B: the Church of England (3 representatives). 
 
Committee C: Teachers’ Associations. 

Such teachers’ associations as, in the opinion of the local authority, ought to be represented, 
namely: 

the Association of School and College Leaders (1 representative) 
the Association of Teachers and Lecturers (1 representative) 
the National Association of Head Teachers (1 representative) 

the National Association of School Teachers/Union of Women Teachers (1 representative) 
the National Union of Teachers (1 representative). 

 
Committee D: Representatives of the Local Authority. 

Elected members of the Council. The elected members represented on Committee D shall 

comprise of the Cabinet Member responsible for Children’s Services, one other elected Member 
from the majority party, and one elected member from each of the other political parties 

comprising the Council, Independents included. 
 
Co-opted Members 

 

3.2 Other persons may be co-opted by the representative committees of the SACRE for such 

purposes and such length of time as the representative committees of the SACRE shall decide. 
Co-opted members may resign at any time and may be removed by the representative 
committees of the SACRE at any time. 

 
3.3 Co-opted persons may participate fully in the discussions of the SACRE but may not vote. 

 
3.4 No more than five co-opted persons shall belong to the SACRE at any one time.  
 

Substitute Representatives 

 

3.5 Any member of any of the representative committees unable to attend a SACRE meeting 
may arrange for a substitute to attend on her/his behalf. However, the said substitute must fulfil 
the same representative criteria as the representative for whom they are deputising (see 4.1 and 

4.2 below). The substitute representative will have the same voting powers as the representative 
in whose place they attend. Such arrangements must be notified to the Clerk to the SACRE, 

preferably at least one week in advance of the meeting, by the representative to be substituted. 

Page 8



 
Student Representatives 

 

3.6 A maximum of three students may be nominated from Year 11 and one from Sixth Form to 

attend the meetings of the SACRE.  The student representatives may participate fully in the 
discussions of the SACRE but may not vote.   
 

3.7 Student representatives may remain on the SACRE for a maximum of two years, provided 
they still attend school. Student representatives may resign at any time and may be removed by 

the representative committees of the SACRE at any time. 
 
Local Authority Representation (other than that on Committee D) 

 

3.8 A Lead Officer (LO), preferably with responsibility for RE, shall attend the meetings of the 

SACRE in an advisory capacity. The LO may participate fully in the discussions of the SACRE 
but may not vote.  The SACRE reserves the right to replace the LO with an experienced teacher 
of RE to act in an advisory capacity. 

 
3.9 The Clerk to the SACRE shall be provided by the Democratic Services Section, Corporate 

Services Department, Darlington Borough Council.  
 
Additional Information Relating to Membership of the SACRE 

 

4.1 Before appointing a person to represent a religion, denomination or association on 

Committees A, B or C, the local authority shall consult locally and take all reasonable steps to 
assure themselves that he/she is representative of the religion, denomination or association in 
question. 

 
4.2 A representative of a religion, denomination or association may be removed from 

membership of the SACRE if, in the opinion of the local authority, he/she ceases to be 
representative of the religion, denomination or association he/she was appointed to represent. 
 

4.3 A representative of a religion, denomination or association shall hold office for four years. 
An outgoing representative of a religion, denomination or association may be re-appointed. 

 
4.4 Any representative of the four committees may at any time resign her/his office. A 
representative replacing an existing representative on Committees A, B or C shall hold office for 

four years from the date of appointment.  
 

4.5 It is appreciated that elected members who are Committee D representatives shall remain 
representatives for as long as their unique circumstances allow, but shall, under normal 
circumstances, hold office for a minimum of one year and a maximum of four years. An 

outgoing representative of Committee D may be re-appointed.  
 

4.6 Where a representative fails to attend three consecutive meetings of the SACRE, and is not 
represented at any of the three meetings by a named substitute in accordance with 3.5 above, 
he/she shall cease to be a member of the SACRE and shall not be eligible for re-appointment for 

a further period of three meetings. The nominating body shall be invited to nominate another 
representative provided that: 

 
(a) the Clerk to the SACRE has advised the representative in writing of the provision of this 
clause within a fortnight of the second missed meeting, and at least a fortnight before the third 

missed meeting; 

Page 9



 
(b) the SACRE does not decide to waive this rule for reasons of extenuating circumstances.    

 
The Chair and the Vice-Chair 

 
4.7 The SACRE shall appoint a Chair and a Vice-Chair from among the committee 
representatives and their terms of office shall be three years.  An outgoing Chair or Vice-Chair 

may be re-elected.  
 

4.8 In the event of more than one committee representative being nominated for the role of Chair 
or Vice-Chair, an election shall be held. Those entitled to vote are the representatives of 
Committees A, B, C and D. Each representative shall have one vote. A simple majority will 

decide who is to be elected Chair or Vice-Chair.  
 

4.9 The Chair shall preside at meetings of the SACRE. The Vice-Chair shall preside at meetings 
of the SACRE during the absence of the Chair. In the absence of both the Chair and the Vice-
Chair at a meeting of the SACRE, the SACRE shall elect one of their number who is a member 

of Committees A, B, C or D to preside at the meeting during such absence.    
 

Persons who are Ineligible to be Committee Representatives, Substitute Representatives or 

Co-opted Members of the SACRE 

 

4.10 Committees A, B, C and D representatives, substitute representatives and co-opted 
members must be at least 18 years of age, except for students in local authority schools who, 

because of the nature of their education, have not yet reached the age of 18 years. 
 
4.11 A person shall be disqualified from holding, or continuing to hold, office as a committee 

representative, substitute representative or co-opted member of the SACRE if, within five years 
before her/his appointment would otherwise have taken effect, or since her/his appointment, 

he/she has been convicted in the United Kingdom, the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man of any 
offence and has had passed on her or him a sentence of imprisonment (whether suspended or 
not) for a period of not less than three months without the option of a fine. Where, by virtue of 

this paragraph, a person becomes disqualified from holding office as a committee representative, 
substitute representative or co-opted member of the SACRE, that person shall give notice of the 

fact to the Clerk to the SACRE.    
 
The SACRE Sub-Groups 

 
5.1 In order to more efficiently conduct its business, the SACRE may convene a SACRE sub-

group. The SACRE will give such a sub-group a specific task or tasks to address and a time 
scale in which to complete its deliberations. Once its task or tasks are complete, the sub-group 
will bring the results of its deliberations to the SACRE. The SACRE will discuss the merits of 

the sub-group’s deliberations and either accept fully, accept partially or reject in full the 
outcomes. 

 
5.2 Any sub-group formed by the SACRE shall include committee representatives and/or co-
opted members of the SACRE. However, should it feel it will be helpful, the SACRE shall invite 

other persons to join the sub-group if their knowledge, skills and/or understanding are deemed 
relevant to the task or tasks in hand.        

 
How the SACRE Conducts its Business 

 

6.1 The SACRE shall meet not less than once each school term.  

Page 10



 
6.2 The quorum for a meeting of the SACRE shall be not less than one member of each of the 

four representative committees.  
 

6.3 The quorum for a meeting of a representative committee shall be not less than one member 
of the committee in question. 
 

6.4 If within a period of thirty minutes after the time fixed for the start of the meeting of the 
SACRE a quorum is not present, the meeting shall not be held. If, during the course of a 

meeting, a quorum is no longer present, the meeting shall be terminated. However, those present 
or remaining may decide to remain to discuss matters relating to the agenda, on the 
understanding that no decisions can be reached on the SACRE’s behalf due to a quorum not 

being present.    
 

6.5 If a meeting is not held or is terminated before all the proposed business has been transacted, 
a further meeting shall be convened as soon as is reasonably practicable. A meeting of the 
SACRE shall be convened by the Clerk to the SACRE after consultation with the Chair, but the 

Clerk to the SACRE will comply with any direction given by the SACRE at the previous 
meeting, or with any direction given by the Chair, or, in her/his absence, the Vice-Chair of the 

SACRE.  
 
6.6 Other than in the most exceptional circumstances, and with the prior agreement of the Chair, 

every member of the SACRE shall be given, not less than seven clear days before the date of the 
meeting, written notice of the meeting signed by the Clerk to the SACRE. Such written notice 

will include the agenda and all relevant reports or papers required for business within the 
meeting to be undertaken efficiently. 
 

6.7 No issue shall be discussed at the meeting of the SACRE unless notice of the intention to 
discuss that issue is given in the agenda for the meeting. Any SACRE committee representative 

or co-opted member can at any meeting of the SACRE propose agenda items for the next or a 
future meeting.           
  

Voting Arrangements 

 

7.1 On any question to be decided by the SACRE, only the representative committees on the 
SACRE shall be entitled to vote. Each representative committee has a single vote. Decisions 
within each committee on how their vote shall be cast in the full SACRE meeting shall be 

determined by a simple majority. Each member of the representative committee shall be entitled 
to one vote when such decisions are reached. In the event of a tied vote, the representative 

committee concerned shall abstain from voting in the full SACRE meeting. 
 
7.2 Should it be necessary, a finite amount of time, agreed by the SACRE and granted during the 

SACRE meeting itself, shall be allocated to the representative committees to decide how they 
will cast their vote. Where it is known in advance that a vote will, or is likely to, be taken at the 

forthcoming SACRE meeting, the representative committees may wish to meet prior to the full 
SACRE meeting itself to discuss how they will cast their vote. 
    

7.3 When the SACRE as a whole votes, decisions shall be determined by a simple majority. In 
the case of a tied vote, the Chair shall have a second, or casting, vote. 

 
7.4 Committees A, B and C shall be entitled to vote on and require the SACRE to carry out a 
review of the existing Agreed Syllabus for RE. Each of the three committees shall have one vote 

on the question of whether to require such a review.  

Page 11



 

Public and Media Attendance at the Meetings of the SACRE  

 
8.1 The meetings of the SACRE shall be open to members of the public and duly accredited 

representatives of the news media. Members of the public and representatives of the news media 
can attend as observers, not as participants in the discussions or proceedings. The attendance of 
the public and representatives of the news media at meetings of the SACRE are subject to the 

Religious Education (Meetings of Local Conferences and Councils) Regulations 1994.  
 

8.2 Public notice of the time and the place of any meeting of the SACRE shall be given by 
posting it in a prominent position in the Town Hall, easily accessible to the public, at least three 
clear days before the meeting. Copies of the agenda and all relevant reports or papers for the 

meeting of the SACRE shall be available for inspection by members of the public at least three 
clear days before the meeting.  

 
8.3 Copies of agendas, reports, papers and minutes shall be available for inspection by members 
of the public after a meeting of the SACRE until the expiration of six years beginning with the 

date of the meeting. All such documents will be kept in the Town Hall, from where they will be 
made available to the public on request. 

 
The Validity of Proceedings of the SACRE 

 

9.1 The validity of proceedings of the SACRE shall not be affected: 
 

(a) by a vacancy in the office of any committee representative of the SACRE required by 3.1 
above;  
 

(b) on the grounds that a committee representative of the SACRE appointed to represent any 
religion, denomination or association does not at the time of the proceedings represent the 

religion, denomination or association in question;  
 
(c) by reason of an individual SACRE member not having received written notice of a meeting 

or a copy of the agenda; 
 

(d) by the failure of any representative committee to agree on how its vote shall be cast on any 
particular issue before the SACRE.   
   

Page 12



Making Alterations to/Amending the Constitution. 

 

10.1 This Constitution was adopted as the Constitution of the Darlington Borough Council 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education at a meeting duly convened on: 

 
Approved by Cabinet 7th September, 2010 

 

 
10.2 These arrangements may not be amended so as to make them inconsistent with the 1996 

legislative requirements. 
 
10.3 To the extent that these arrangements may be amended, they may only be amended by a 

decision of the SACRE.  
 

10.4 In order to ensure a consistent approach to meetings, and that changes to these 
arrangements are not made without full notice and proper consideration of the implications of 
any proposed change, any change shall only be made as follows: 

 
(a) only a representative committee may propose a change to these arrangements; 

 
(b) any appropriate proposal to change these arrangements shall be submitted in writing to the 
Clerk to the SACRE for inclusion on the agenda of the next AGM of the SACRE, the proposal 

to include both the form of words suggested for inclusion in these arrangements and a statement 
of the objective to be achieved by the proposed change; 

 
(c) the SACRE shall then, at the AGM, convene a SACRE sub-group to consider the merits of 
the proposed change to the existing arrangements. The sub-group will meet and decide on the 

merits of the proposed change. The sub-group will bring a summary of its deliberations to the 
next full meeting of the SACRE and the SACRE will decide on what action, if any, to take.     

 
 

 

 

Page 13



 

 

Appendix One 

 

Additional Information about the SACRE Annual Report 

 

11.1 The annual report of the SACRE shall in particular: 
 
(a) specify any matters in respect of which the SACRE has given advice to the local authority; 

 
(b) broadly describe the nature of the advice given; 

 
(c) where any such matter was not referred to the SACRE by the local authority, give the 
SACRE’s reason or reasons for offering advice on the matter;  

 
(d) reflect on the quality, etc. of RE and collective worship provided in Darlington Borough 

Council’s schools, especially its community schools (as, for example, revealed in Ofsted reports 
and public exam results at GCSE and A Level). 
 

Additional Information about the Agreed Syllabus Conference  
 

11.2 For the purpose of preparing an Agreed Syllabus for RE, the local authority must convene 
an Agreed Syllabus Conference. An Agreed Syllabus Conference is a separate legal entity from 
the SACRE and, although common membership is permissible, it must be separately convened.  

 
11.3 The role of the Agreed Syllabus Conference is to produce and recommend an Agreed 

Syllabus for RE which meets fully the present legislative requirements and is educationally 
sound. The task of producing a syllabus cannot be delegated except to a sub-group which must 
include at least one member of each of the representative committees constituting the SACRE. 

This does not prevent an Agreed Syllabus Conference receiving advice or comment from outside 
groups or individuals. Only an Agreed Syllabus Conference may recommend an Agreed 

Syllabus for RE, and its recommendation must be unanimously agreed by the representative 
committees constituting the Agreed Syllabus Conference.   
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of SACRE held on 17 March 2025
	4 Members discussion:  The ongoing role of SACRE on Darlington

